

Arab World English Journal

INTERNATIONAL PEER REVIEWED JOURNAL ISSN: 2229-9327 مجلة اللغة الانكليزية في العالم العربي

Arab World English Journal (March 2020) DOI: https://dx.doi.org/10.24093/awej/th.252 Theses ID 252

Pp. 1-26

Community Perceptions of English and its Effect on EFL Students' Attitudes Towards Learning the Language

Arwa Hassan Ahmad Alshehri

Author: Arwa Hassan Ahmad Alshehri

Thesis Title: Community Perceptions of English and its Effect on EFL Students' Attitudes

Towards Learning the Language

Institution: Faculty of Languages and Translation, King Khalid University

Degree: M.A in Applied Linguistics

Year of award: April 2018

Supervisor: Dr. Abdul Wahid Al Zumor

KeyWords: community, perceptions, learning, English as a Foreign Language (EFL), EFL

students, King Khalid University, Saudi Arabia

Abstract

Community is one of the main forces that shapes individuals' beliefs, values, and behaviors. The community perceptions can influence students at many levels especially at the level of learning foreign languages. Therefore, this study aims to examine and analyze how community perception of EFL can influence the students' willingness to learn and use English language. The study highlights some of the recent studies conducted about the importance of learning English in Saudi Arabia, and the community perception and its effect in the low EFL achievement level of Saudi learners. The aim of this study is to assess the community perception of English and their effect on EFL use by King Khalid university students. The study followed the quantitative method of data collection and analysis. A survey was conducted to collect data through a questionnaire containing 17 items that was completed by 89 students from the first to the fourth year in the languages and translation department at King Khalid University, Abha. The data were analyzed through statistical analysis (SPSS) and the use of multiple regression analysis for the data analysis. Subsequently, the findings showed that the students have a high willingness to study and practice English, whereas the community has a middle effect on students' attitudes in the use of English language. Additionally, the study shows that the community have a middle to high negative effect on the students' language competency mainly, in the improperly teaching methods and the lack of extracurricular activities provided by the educational system.

Cite as: Alshehri, A. H.A. (2018). Community Perceptions of English and its Effect on EFL Students' Attitudes Towards Learning the Language. Faculty of Languages and Translation, King Khalid University (M.A.Thesis). Retrieved from *Arab World English Journal* (ID Number: 252. March 2020, 1- 26. DOI: https://dx.doi.org/10.24093/awej/th.252

Arab World English Journal

ISSN: 2229-9327

www.awej.org



Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Ministry of Higher Education

King Khalid University, Abha

Faculty of Languages and Translation

COMMUNITY PERCEPTIONS OF ENGLISH AND ITS EFFECT ON EFL STUDENTS' ATTITUDES TOWARDS LEARNING THE LANGUAGE

A thesis submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the Master degree in Applied Linguistics

Faculty of Languages and Translation, King Khalid University

Master of Arts in Applied Linguistics

Graduation Project

Arwa Hassan Ahmad Alshehri

University ID: 437817830

Supervisor: Abdul Wahid Al Zumor, Associate Professor of Applied Linguistics

MAAL 541

April 17th 2018

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

First I would thank my supervisor, Abdul Wahid Al Zumor, Associate Professor of Applied Linguistics for his continuous support and guidance along this semester of writing the paper, I have learned from you enormously.

I would also thank Dr. Ismail Khalil Alrefaai, Assistant professor of Applied Linguistics for his remarkable support and guidance.

I must also send a special thank you for my dear parents, my husband, my brother Ahmed, and all of my family members whom have been their all the time to help, advice and support me emotionally and financially. This would have not been reached without you by my side. And of course, a big thank you to my little son who was always there to cheer me up.

I am also grateful for my friend Roaa, who has motivated me to move on at the most difficult times, I am really grateful for knowing you.

Big thank you for every linguist and researcher whom I have learned from their knowledge and writings so much.

Thank you, the reader who have spire the time to read this piece of work.

Abstract

Community is one of the main forces that shapes individuals' beliefs, values, and behaviors. The community perceptions can influence students at many levels especially at the level of learning foreign languages. Therefore, this study aims to examine and analyze how community perception of EFL can influence the students' willingness to learn and use English language. The study highlights some of the recent studies conducted about the importance of learning English in Saudi Arabia, and the community perception and its effect in the low EFL achievement level of Saudi learners. The aim of this study is to assess the community perception of English and their effect on EFL use by King Khalid university students. The study followed the quantitative method of data collection and analysis. A survey was conducted to collect data through a questionnaire containing 17 items that was completed by 89 students from the first to the fourth year in the languages and translation department at King Khalid University, Abha. The data were analyzed through statistical analysis (SPSS) and the use of multiple regression analysis for the data analysis. Subsequently, the findings showed that the students have a high willingness to study and practice English, whereas the community has a middle effect on students' attitudes in the use of English language. Additionally, the study shows that the community have a middle to high negative effect on the students' language competency mainly, in the improperly teaching methods and the lack of extracurricular activities provided by the educational system.

Keywords, Saudi Arabia, community, perceptions, learning, English as a Foreign Language (EFL), EFL students, King Khalid University

Table of Contents

Acknowledgements	1
Abstract	2
Table of Contents	3
1. Introduction	4
1.1 Statement of the Problem	5
1.2 Aim of the Study	5
2. Literature Review	5
2.1 The Importance of English in Saudi Arabia	5
2.2 The Community Perception and its Effect in the Low EFL Achievement Level of Saudi Learners	6
3. Research Questions	6
4. Methodology	7
4.1 Participants	7
4.2 Research Design	8
4.3 Searching Tool	8
4.4 Procedures	8
4.5 Data Analysis	8
4.6 Validity and Reliability of the Survey	8
5. Results	9
6. Discussion	12
6.1 The Students' Willingness towards Learning and Using the Language	12
6.2 The Family Perception and Use of the Language	13
6.3 The Educational Institutions and the Teaching Methodologies	13
6.4 The General Community including; Friends and Public Areas	13
7. Conclusion and Recommendations	13
7.1 Limitations and Suggestions for Further Research	14
References	14
Appendix	16
- Questionnaire and Tables	17

Community Perceptions of English and its Effect on EFL Students' Attitudes Towards Learning the Language

1. Introduction

One of the important segments of societies are students. In Saudi Arabia, the education sector is considered to rank high in the government agenda. Developing and improving the education system has been a continuous process since the unification of the Kingdom. Moreover, improving the education system is at the top of the agenda of 2030 vision of the Kingdom which focuses on all elements of education especially students. Having that said, students generally are influenced in Saudi, like any other country, by environment, society, education system, and/or technology. These community factors have a far-reaching mental and psychological effect on the students' whether they try to gain new skills or maintain and develop existing ones. Important skills like communication skills and especially gaining English language not only will affect their education and career path but also their future. English is the universal language today (Crystal, 1997/2003) and it is impossible to ignore its impact anywhere in the world. English represents the evolution of globalization and English language education (ELT) is a means of disseminating not only English but also the globalization that language symbolizes "Knowing the language can help us to express our opinions, hopes, and even our dreams" (Tavil, z. 2009). In the context of learning a foreign language, there are many factors that affect the learning process, such as motivation, attitudes, anxiety, learning achievements, preparations, intelligence, age, characters, etc. (Shams, 2008). The question of a student's position is recognized as one of the most important factors affecting language learning (Fakeye, 2010).

There are many reasons why students' attitudes towards language learning is important. For example, Weinburgh (1998) believes that attitudes toward learning influence behaviors such as selecting, reading books, and speaking in a foreign language. In general, students' attitudes are believed to dictate whether they are able to absorb language details or not. In other words, performance in the target language depends not only on the intellectual ability but also on the student's attitudes towards language learning. This means that language education must be treated primarily as a social and psychological phenomenon rather than purely academic.

In addition to the intellectual perspective, the nature of language learning has psychological and social aspects and depends mainly on the motivations of the students and their attitude towards learning the target language (Padwick, 2010). The ability of students to master a second language is not only influenced by mental competence or language skills, but also by the attitudes and willingness of students towards the target language (Abidin et al., 2012). They also argued that the concept of attitudes can improve the language learning process, influencing the nature of students' behavior and beliefs towards another language, their culture and society, and this will determine their desire to acquire that language.

1.1 Statement of the Problem

The importance of English language is growing wider every day with the insist on being able to communicate with English, students still face difficulties on achieving a satisfactory level in the English language. This study focuses on examining the real students' willingness to learn the language and then decide on whether these facts contribute as one of the main factors affecting their low achievement level. Subsequently, the study examines the community perception and the effect it may have on the students' achievement level. The study shows that the community have a middle to high negative effect on the students' language competency. Mainly, in the improperly teaching methods and the lack of extracurricular activities.

1.2 Aim of the Study

This research aims at identifying the community perception of English as a foreign language. It examines the students' willingness towards the language and focuses on the different community factors and how each factor can support the learning process or is it considered to have a negative effect in learning and using of the English language. Accordingly, the study discusses different outcomes and suggests certain recommendations for the future EFL development. The research information and recommendations are hoped to be advantageous for the future development of EFL teaching and learning in relation of Saudi Arabia context and more specifically in the community of King Khalid University.

2 Literature Review

2.1 The Importance of English in Saudi Arabia:

Al-Sarraj (2014) noted that teaching a foreign language is particularly important in Saudi Arabia due to the increasing pressure on Saudi students to learn English. He added that globalization has created a strong demand for English language skills in the Saudi market and that the Saudi educational system has changed to meet this demand. Farouk (2014) explained that the Saudi considered that the usefulness of English was beneficial to develop their professional future, strengthen their status and spread their religion. Therefore, the importance of English in Saudi Arabia is not limited to its practical and communicative language, it is also fundamental in the social, economic, political and religious spheres nationally and internationally. In terms of economy, Mahbub and Elias (2014) emphasized that English was of particular importance in the Saudi educational system because of its perceived economic value, language became intrinsically linked to the discourse of oil. For this reason, English is taught as a key issue in the Saudi public and private schools and is an intermediary for training in large corporations throughout the country, including Saudi Arabian Airlines, Saudi Aramco and Saudi Telecommunications Company. Al-Rashedi and Phan (2015) said that the English allowed the Saudi to connect with some 9.5 million expatriates working in Saudi Arabia and that English skills are among the skills that Saudi workers should have in the world. In addition, English plays a key role in promoting foreign investment in Saudi Arabia. The Saudi government has recognized education as the cornerstone of a knowledge-based economy that can support sustainable development and economic growth (Bashehab and Buddhapriya, 2013), providing an

alternative to dependence on oil resources, to be exhausted today. Therefore, the government invests heavily in education and provides incentives for Saudi citizens to continue learning. This position is evident in the scholarship program established by the late King Abdullah in 2005, which enables Saudi students to perform higher education in English-speaking countries such as the United States, the United Kingdom, Australia and Canada. As a result, there has been a significant increase in the number of Saudi studying abroad. When those students return to Saudi Arabia, they are expected to contribute to expand the teaching in the educational field and teaching of English as a foreign language.

2.2 The Community Perception and its Effect in the Low EFL Achievement Level of Saudi Learners:

It has been fundamentally recognized for several decades that the community perception has a profound influence on the students' practices and experiences throughout the schooling levels and how the students perceive themselves as language students. The perceptions and experiences of students are also influenced by the social and educational context. Therefore, the low proficiency in English for Saudi students is a multidimensional and complex phenomenon. To address key problems and find practical solutions, it is important first to address the underlying factors of this problem. It can be attributed to the weak in English for a variety of interrelated factors ranging from variables related to social and cultural variables (e.g., the effect of L1, society, culture and religion), (e.g teacher behavior, practices, curricula and teaching methods) and other factors related to the problems of the education system in Saudi Arabia (such as crowded classrooms, lack of teacher training and lack of technology). Other main factor can be related to the students' psychology, Hamouda (2013), stated that Saudi EFL learners may face various factors such as factors related to language anxiety (e.g., the fear of speaking in front of others, fear of negative teacher evaluations, shyness, lack of confidence and preparation, low self-esteem, fear of comparisons with others, and fear of making mistakes and being laughed at) as major problems contribute to the low English language achievement level. Additionally, Fakieh Alrabai (2016), represents the reasons of the low achievement of EFL learners. Alrabai focused mainly on the external factors stating that, "The low EFL achievements of Saudi learners can be primarily attributed to factors that are outside of the learner's control." such as the influence of Arabic as the first language (L1); religion, culture, and society; instructional variables, such as teacher behavior and teaching styles, the curriculum, and the teaching methods; and finally, problems with the educational system in Saudi Arabia, such as overcrowded classes, improperly trained teachers. In the traditional teaching methods, (Alhawsawi, 2013; Almutairi, 2008; Fareh, 2010), agreed on the fact that one of the main problems of the students' low achievement is the use of traditional methods in teaching English language.

3 Research Questions

The study aims at investigating the willingness of the students to learn the language, and consequently examining the community perception of EFL and its impact on their English competence. The community is divided into three main parts or factors; include, family factors, educational institutions, and friends and public areas. Therefore, this study attempts to find answers to the following sub questions:

- 1. Does the students' willingness contribute to affect their low English achievement?
- 2. How does community perceptions affect the students' attitudes towards learning and using English language?
- 3. What is the impact of the community on the students' willingness in English language learning process?

4 Methodology

4.1 Participants

The sample of the present study were students of languages and translation from first to fourth year at King Khalid University, Abha. The number of the surveys that were distributed to the students is 100 and only 89 students completed the survey. The frequencies and percentages of the sample were calculated according to the variables (The students' year of the university education – Educational level of parents- Kind of previous schools). The majority of the students were from the fourth year in English language department of 53 students (59.6 of the participants). The second major number of the participants was 29 students from the first year at the university (32.6% of the participants). The second demographic variable is the parents' level of education. Most of the answers were showing that parents who have higher education level are 43.8% of the participants' parents. The final demographic variable was the type of previous educational institution. The majority number was 80 students (89.9% of the participants) ranked for the government schools where only 9 students (10.1% of the participants) had their previous education at private schools.

Table (1): Description of Sample in Light of Demographic Questions

Demography variables	Variable sections	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
	First	29	32.6	32.6
The students' year of	second	1	1.1	33.7
university education	Third	6	6.7	40.4
	Fourth	53	59.6	100.0
Educational level of parents	Primary	17	19.1	19.1
	Middle	12	13.5	32.6
	Secondary	21	23.6	56.2
	Higher education	39	43.8	100.0
Kind of previous school	Government education	80	89.9	89.9
	Private education	9	10.1	100.0
	Total	89	100.0	

4.2 Research Design

The study followed a quantitative design of data collection and analysis where primary data were collected from close-ended questionnaire distributed to the students at King Khalid University. The method is suitable for the nature of the research because it focuses on finding facts about the current situation of the issue. The study focused on investigating the students attitudes and the effect of the community perception of EFL in learning and using the language. Therefore, the final results of the study aims to increase the positive community influence on the students' willingness to use English language and recommends suggested solutions for the negative community factors.

4.3 Searching Tool

After reviewing the previous studies related to the subject of the research, a questionnaire was conducted to answer the research questions and achieve its objectives. The questionnaire was designed by looking at some of the tools and measures of other studies relevant to the current research topic. It consisted of three demographic questions, five questions concerned with the students' attitude and willingness to learn the language, and nine questions of the community effect on the learning process divided into three main factors; family, educational institution, and friends and public areas. The questions employed a five point Likert Scale ranging from 1. (strongly disagree) to 5. (strongly agree) (see Appendix A).

4.4 Procedures

The searching tool was a questionnaire distributed in Arabic language since it is easier for the students to grasp the intended meaning of each statement. After having the supervisor's final permission in the questionnaire acceptance, the questionnaires were distributed to the students by the researcher at King Khalid University, Abha. The participants were informed that the purpose of the study is purely academic. They were informed that their participation is completely voluntary and the information of their responses will remain confidential.

4.5 Data Analysis

The data of the questionnaire were analyzed by using SPSS (Statistical Package for the Social Sciences) software. Also, the use of multiple regression analysis for the data analysis.

4.6 Validity and Reliability of the Survey

4.6.1 Validity

To make sure the research tool is able to measure what is being measured, the analysis presented the tool in its initial form to a number of specialists to evaluate; the extent of appropriate tool axes to measure what was put to measure, the extent to which the phrases belong to the axes, the extent of negative or positive phrase, add or delete what fits. After collecting the comments of the participants, they were examined and the comments were

taken which were valid by 80% or more, and therefore the tool was searched in its final form consisting of: demographic data segment, part of the aptitude of the student to learn English (5 statements), part of the impact of society on student behavior in the use of language; including, family factor (3 statements), educational environment (3 statements), public places and friends (3 statements).

4.6.2 Reliability

The Alpha Cronbach coefficient as an indicator of the stability of the research tool. The results were as follows:

Table (2): Reliability Coefficients

Variables sections		reliability coefficients
Willingness of the student to learn English		0.67
	Family	0.603
Effect of the community factors on student use of	educational environment	0.589
the language	Public places and friends	0.701

From the above table, the reliability for survey is accepted

From the above table, the reality coefficients value of the all axis of the questionnaire was all of high scores approaching the correct one and the total degree of reality was (0.756) which is a high value and approaching the correct one and it refers to the validity of the questionnaire for the application and the reliability of its results.

5 Results

This study aims at determining the community perception of English and how it can affect the EFL students use and learn of the language. The variables were examined under two major sections: a) the willingness of the students towards acquiring the language, b) the effect of the community factors on the students English language learning process. The second section is divided into three main factors; include, the family factor, the educational institution factor, and the friends and general community factor. Section one was concerned with answering the first sub question of the research: does the students willingness contribute to affect their low English achievement level? The results were as follows: for the first statement, high level of aptitude towards practicing the language, indicated a high score agreement of 86.60%. The second statement, the student's extra time spent on learning the language, indicated 73.80% of the participants' agreements. Statement 3, Enough exposure about the English language, scored 78.20% of the participants, Statement 4, using the language whenever possible in daily life activities, scored 83.00% of the participants. The final statement, does the social media that the students use support in improving their English language skills, it scored 69.80% of the participants. Consequently, the total percentage of the first section statements were high with 78.25%. The final results of the first variable which examined the students' willingness towards the language, showed that the students have high level of willingness to learn and use English language.

The second variable aimed to investigate the community perception of EFL dividing this section into three major factors. Answering the second and third research sub questions: How does community perceptions affect the students' attitudes towards learning and using English language? and What is the impact of the community on the students' willingness in English language learning process? The first section is concerned with the family factors. Statement 1, family environment help in practicing the language is 60.00% which is considered to be of average percentage of the participants' responses. Statement 2, parents' education allows their children to practice the language, with 61.80% of the participants. Statement 3, family members does not speak English at all, with 63.80% of the participants. The second section is concerned with the educational institution section. Statement 1, effective curriculum, 56.60% of an average percentage. Statement 2, Teaching methods, 44.40% of a weak percentage representing that the English teaching methods are unsatisfactory. Statement 3, If the school or the academic institution provide extracurricular activities, this will improve my English language competence, 74.60% of the participants agreed upon. The third section is concerned with the friends and community in general effect. Statement 1, anxiety of speaking the language at public places, 70.60% of the participant agreed on feeling anxious and embarrassed to speak English at public places. Statement 2, practicing the language with friends is undesirable, 65.80% of the participants agreed on the fact that specking with their friends in English is undesirable. Statement 3, the community perspective is negative towards speaking in English language, 70.20% of the participants found this statement true.

Table (3): Means and Standard Deviations for Responses

variables	statements	Mean	Std.	percent	Level of
			Deviation		estimate*
	High aptitude towards practicing the language	4.33	.876	86.60%	high
	Extra time spend on learning the language	3.69	.961	73.80%	high
Willingness of	Enough exposure of English language	3.91	1.062	78.20%	high
the student to learn English	Using the language whenever possible in daily life activities	4.15	.791	83.00%	high
	The student use of the social media does not help on developing their English language skills	3.49	1.169	69.80%	high
	v1	3.9124	.64241	78.25%	high

	Family environment help in	3.00	1.414	60.00%	middle
	practicing the language				
	Parents' education allows	3.09	1.231	61.80%	middle
	their children to practice the				
	language				
Effect of the	Family members does not	3.19	1.269	63.80%	middle
community	speak English at all				
factors on	total	3.0936	.99619	61.87%	middle
student use	Effective curriculum	2.83	1.141	56.60%	middle
and learn of	Teaching methods	2.22	1.009	44.40%	weak
the English	If the school or the academic	3.73	1.042	74.60%	high
	institution provide				
	extracurricular activities, this				
	will improve my English				
	language competence				
	total	2.9288	.67508	58.58%	middle
	Anxiety of speaking the	3.53	1.235	70.60%	middle
	language at public places				
	Practicing the language with	3.29	1.281	65.80%	middle
	friends is undesirable				
	Negative community	3.51	1.271	70.20%	middle
	perspective when speaking in				
	English language				
	total	3.4419	.93579	68.84%	middle

*Weak (1 -2.33), middle (2.34-3.67), high (3.68-5)

To answer the research questions the data analysis were conducted by means of SPSS software, using factor analysis. The results showed that the community factors have positive effects on the students' learning and use of the English language. The negative effects of the community were on; the unsatisfactory English language teaching methods and the lack of extracurricular activities which support achieving the English language competence. The final results showed that the students have high aptitude and willingness to learn and use the language and their positive view of the language does not stand as a negative effect in the learning process. Although the students have high motivation level to use and learn the language, the community have a middle to little impact on helping the students acquire the language. This refers to various factors, mainly concerned with the teaching methods, and the extracurricular activities availability.

Table (4): Component Matrix^a

			(Compone	nt	
variables	statements	1	2	3	4	5
	High aptitude	.550	415	317		
Willingness of the student to	Extra time	.539	393			
learn English	Enough exposure	.646				408
	Using the language	.645			337	
	Use of the social media	.480		454		
	Family environment	.498	.455		.426	
Effect of the community	Parents' education		.736			
factors on student use of the	Family members	.404	.507		.527	
language	Effective curriculum					.801
	Teaching methods		498		.458	.419
	Extracurricular activities			501	483	
	Anxiety of speaking in public places	.515		.483	310	
	Practicing the language with friends	.449		.445		
	Negative community perspective	.336		.650		
	Extraction Method: Principa	al Compo	onent Ana	lysis.		1

6 Discussion

The results of the study are discussed in light of the research objective that attempts to examine both the students' willingness and the community perception of EFL and its effect on the students low English language achievement level. The interpretation of the results will be divided into four main themes; the students' willingness towards learning and using the language, the family perception and use of the language, the educational institutions and the teaching methodologies, the general community including; friends and public areas.

6.1 The Students' Willingness towards Learning and Using the Language, is the most important part of achieving the competency in a language or any other skill. In this research, it was essential at first to understand the students' willingness towards learning the language before determining the community effect on the learning process. The study of this particular section found that the students' willingness towards learning is high and reflects their awareness of the importance of advancing the English language.

6.2 The Family Perception and Use of the Language, showed that students' families had a middle impact on their language competence. The impact was in the lack to communicate and practice the language between the family members.

6.3 The Educational Institutions and the Teaching Methodologies, showed a strong impact of the English teaching methods on the students' low achievement. The result is in agreement with (Alhawsawi, 2013; Almutairi, 2008; Fareh, 2010), who agreed on the fact that one of the main problems of the students' low achievement is the use of traditional methods in teaching English language.

6.4 The General Community including; Friends and Public Areas, this section showed that the average number of students feel anxious to use their English at public places. This refers to several psychological factors which is agreed with Hamouda (2013), considering essential factors related to language anxiety such as, the fear of speaking in front of others, shyness, lack of confidence and preparation, low self-esteem, fear of comparisons with others, and fear of making mistakes and being laughed at.

7 Conclusion and Recommendations

Learning English has become a necessity in the world today. Such a skill can make the difference in any one's qualifications. Specifically, learning English as a second language is an essential skill for students in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The kingdom and its leaders are implementing plans that will expose the country and its people to the world where different cultures and traditions will be exchanged. Not only that, but also the country will be open for people from all over the world weather investors, tourists, or others who are interested to know about the country and deal with its people and they will use English as a main mean of communication. Therefore, it is very relevant now more than ever to work harder to enhance using English in our daily lives weather at school, home, or public areas.

From this study, we can come to realize that creating the right environment is very important for students to learn English. The results showed that the community has been discouraging students to a certain extent from learning English language very easily. In the study, there are different factors that show a negative impact on students such as school environment in general. In this regard, there are several actions that can be suggested to improve the educational part of this process. 1) Provide English teachers with proper training that aims to make them highly qualified to teach the language. 2) Increase the extracurricular activities that enhance the focus on using English more often, i.e. an English day where students will only speak English for the whole day.

The other factor that also affects progressing students in learning English from this study is family. Family has a big responsibility to create a motivational environment for students to learn English. Starting from the house, the sources of information and knowledge to which the students are exposed, whether TV, Internet, or any other source should have a share of the students' time where those sources are shown in English. It is also important that the parents believe in the importance of English and use all available resources to increase the exposure of practicing English in the house.

The research shows that students in the Saudi community have a strong desire to study and become advanced in the English language. In the other hand, the community perception of EFL contributes at affecting the students achievement level in English. The results showed that the community effect was of a middle percentage, which represents that some of community factors affect the students language competence negatively. The two major factors which have a high negative influence in EFL learners were; the inadequate and traditional teaching methods and the lack of extracurricular activities provided by the educational systems. Therefore, it is essential that English instructors as well as the educational institutions and parents work co-operatively to find different methods that support increasing the students' competency in the English language. It is also essential to find ways to help students overcome their fear of speaking in a group or at public places by providing extracurricular activities which contribute to encourage the students to practice and develop their English.

7.1 Limitations and Suggestions for Further Research

The study has two major limitations that should be understood when interpreting the results and implications. The first limitation is that the sample was limited to King Khaled University female students, so the findings cannot be generalized to male students, other universities' students or to the Saudi community generally. The other limitation was the short period of time assigned to conduct the study and revise each step to ensure that it is focused and totally cover all the research issue dimensions.

Further researchers can investigate community impacts from different perspectives including wider range of students in other Saudi universities. Moreover, researchers can enrich their papers by looking into early school levels and find out possible barriers which bring more opportunities to improve students' performance in learning English as a second language.

References

- Abidin, M. J. Z., Pour-Mohammadi, M., & Alzwari, H. (2012). EFL students' attitudes towards learning English language: The case of Libyan secondary school students. Asian Social Science, 8, 119–134
- Alhawsawi, S. (2013). *Investigating student experiences of learning English as a foreign language in a preparatory programme in a Saudi university* (Unpublished doctoral dissertation). University of Sussex, Brighton, UK.
- Almutairi, N. H. (2008). The influence of educational and sociocultural factors on the learning styles and strategies of female students in Saudi Arabia (Unpublished doctoral dissertation). University of Leicester, Leicester, UK.
- Alrabai, F. (2016). Factors underlying low achievement of Saudi EFL learners. *International Journal of English Linguistics*, 6(3), 21.
- Alrashidi, O., & Phan, H. (2015). Education context and English teaching and learning in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia: An overview. *English Language Teaching*, 8(5), 33.

- Al-Saraj, T. M. (2014). Foreign language anxiety in female Arabs learning English: Case studies. Innovation in Language Learning and Teaching, 8(3), 257-278.
- Bashehab, O. S., & Buddhapriya, S. (2013). Status of knowledge based economy in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia: an analysis. Journal of Social and Development Sciences, 4(6), 268-277.
- Crystal, D. (1997/2003). English as a global language. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press. Domoney, L., & Harris, S. (1993). Justified and ancient: Pop music in EFL classrooms. ELT Journal, 47 (3), 234-241.
- Fakeye, D. O. (2010). Students' personal variables as correlates of academic achievement in English as a second language in Nigeria. Journal of Social Sciences, 22(3), 205-211.
- Fareh, S. (2010). Challenges of teaching English in the Arab world: Why can't EFL programs deliver as expected?. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 2(2), 3600-3604.
- Faruk, S. (2014). Saudis' attitude towards English: trend and rationale. Professional Communication and Translation Studies, 7, 173-180.
- Hamouda, A. (2013). An exploration of causes of Saudi students' reluctance to participate in the English language classroom. International Journal of English Language Education, 1(1), 17-34.
- Mahboob, A., & Elyas, T. (2014). English in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. World Englishes, 33, 128-142. http://dx.doi.org/10.1111/weng.12073
- Padwick, A. (2010). Attitudes towards English and varieties of English in globalizing India. Newcastle: University of Groningen. Retrieve from http://scripties.let.eldoc.ub.rug.nl/
 FILES/root/Master/DoorstroomMasters/Euroculture/2009/ a.m.j.padwick/MA-2802445-A.Padwick.pdf
- Shams, M. (2008). Students' attitudes, motivation and anxiety towards English language learning. Journal of Research, 2, 121–144
- Tavil, Z. (2009). Parental Attitudes towards English Education for Kindergarten Students in Turkey. Kastamonu Education Journal. 17(1), 331-340. [Online] Available: www.kefdergi.com/pdf/cilt17_no1/331.pdf (August 9, 2011)
- Weinburgh, M. H. (1998). Gender, ethnicity, and grade level as predictors of middle school students' attitudes toward science. Retrieved from http://www.Ed.Psu.Edu/Ci/ Journals/1998aets/S5_1_Weinburgh.Rtf

Appendix

استبيان

4. السنة الرابعة

يسعدني أن تشاركوني اجاباتكم من خلال هذا الاستبيان والذي لن يستغرق الكثير من وقتكم الثمين. علما بأن جميع الاجابات سيتم استخدامها في رسالة الماجستير وسيتم التعامل معها بسرية تامة.

) المعلومات الشخصية

المدرسة التي تلقيت فيها تعليمي خلال	 المستوى التعليمي للوالدين 	المرحلة الدراسية	•	
سنوات در استى الماضية	 ابتدائي أو أقل " 	السنة الأولى		
	2. متوسط	السنة الثانية	.2	
	48 0	またれたれることれ	2	

3. ثانوي 1. مدرسة حكومية
 4. تعليم عالي 2. مدرسة خاصة

ب) مدى استعداد الطالب في تعلم اللغة وممارستها

٥	£	٣	۲	١		
أوافق بشدة	أوافق	محايد	لا أوافق	لا أوافق بشدة		٢
					أمارس اللغة بدافع رغبة شخصية ومحبة	١
					أقضي وقت اضافي بعيد عن المنهج الدراسي في ممارسة اللغة	۲
					احب الاطلاع على ثقافة اللغة الانجليزية المتنوعة مثل الروايات والافلام	۳
<u> </u>					والموسيقي الح	
					أمارس اللغة كلما سنحت الفرصة في حياتي اليومية	£
					قُنوات التواصل الاجتماعي التي استخدمها لا تصب في تطوير لغتي الإنجليزية	٥

ث) تأثير المجتمع على سلوك الطالب في استخدام اللغة الانجليزية

الأسرة

Ī	٥	£	٣	۲	١		
1	اوافق بشدة	اوافق	محايد	لا اوافق	لا اوافق بشدة		٢
						بينة المنزل تساعد على استخدام اللغة الإنجليزية	١
Ī						مستوى تطيم الوالدين يتيح الفرصة لممارسة اللغة الإنجليزية	۲
Ī						أفراد العائلة لا يتحدثون اللغة الانجليزية اطلاقا	٣

2. البينة التعليمية (المدرسة - الجامعة)

٥	ŧ	٣	۲	١		
أوافق بشدة	أوافق	محايد	لا أوافق	لا أوافق بشدة		٢
					كفاءة المنهج في جميع المراحل التعليمية تساهم في تعلمي للغة	١
					طريقة شرح مواد اللغة الإنجليزية تقليديه ومملة	۲
					الأنشطة اللامنهجية إن وجدت تعزز من تعلمي للغة الانجليزية	٣

الأماكن العامة والأصدقاء

٥	ŧ	٣	۲	١		
أوافق بشدة	أوافق	محايد	لا أوافق	لا أوافق بشدة		٢
					أشعر بالحرج عندما اتواصل باللغة الإنجليزية في الأماكن العامة	
					ممارسة اللغة مع الأصدقاء أمر غير مرغوب في معظم الأوقات	
					نظرة المجتمع السلبية عند التحدث باللغة الانجليزية	

Table (1): Description of Sample in Light of Demographic Questions

Demography variables	Variable sections	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
	First	29	32.6	32.6
The students' year of	second	1	1.1	33.7
university education	Third	6	6.7	40.4
	Fourth	53	59.6	100.0
Educational level of parents	Primary	17	19.1	19.1
	Middle	12	13.5	32.6
	Secondary	21	23.6	56.2
	Higher education	39	43.8	100.0
Kind of previous school	Government education	80	89.9	89.9
	Private education	9	10.1	100.0
	Total	89	100.0	

Table (2): Reliability Coefficients

Variables sections	reliability coefficients		
Willingness of the student to learn English	0.67		
	Family	0.603	
Effect of the community factors on student use of	educational environment	0.589	
the language	Public places and friends	0.701	

Table (3): Means and Standard Deviations for Responses

variables	statements	Mean	Std.	percent	Level of
			Deviation		estimate*
	High aptitude towards practicing the language	4.33	.876	86.60%	high
	Extra time spend on learning the language	3.69	.961	73.80%	high

	Enough exposure of English	3.91	1.062	78.20%	high
Willingness of	language				
the student to	Using the language whenever	4.15	.791	83.00%	high
learn English	possible in daily life activities				
	The student use of the social	3.49	1.169	69.80%	high
	media does not help on				
	developing their English				
	language skills				
	v1	3.9124	.64241	78.25%	high
	Family environment help in	3.00	1.414	60.00%	middle
	practicing the language				
	Parents' education allows	3.09	1.231	61.80%	middle
	their children to practice the				
	language				
Effect of the	Family members does not	3.19	1.269	63.80%	middle
community	speak English at all				
factors on	total	3.0936	.99619	61.87%	middle
student use	Effective curriculum	2.83	1.141	56.60%	middle
and learn of	Teaching methods	2.22	1.009	44.40%	weak
the English	If the school or the academic	3.73	1.042	74.60%	high
	institution provide				
	extracurricular activities, this				
	will improve my English				
	language competence				
	total	2.9288	.67508	58.58%	middle
	Anxiety of speaking the	3.53	1.235	70.60%	middle
	language at public places				
	Practicing the language with	3.29	1.281	65.80%	middle
	friends is undesirable				
	Negative community	3.51	1.271	70.20%	middle
	perspective when speaking in				
	English language				
	total	3.4419	.93579	68.84%	middle

Table (4): Component Matrix^a

		Component				
variables	statements	1	2	3	4	5
	High aptitude	.550	415	317		
Willingness of the student to	Extra time	.539	393			
learn English	Enough exposure	.646				408
	Using the language	.645			337	
	Use of the social media	.480		454		
	Family environment	.498	.455		.426	
Effect of the community	Parents' education		.736			
factors on student use of the	Family members	.404	.507		.527	
language	Effective curriculum					.801
	Teaching methods		498		.458	.419
	Extracurricular activities			501	483	
	Anxiety of speaking in public places	.515		.483	310	
	Practicing the language with friends	.449		.445		
	Negative community perspective	.336		.650		
	Extraction Method: Principal Component Analysis.					

I certify this paper contains my original research

Arwa Hassan Ahmad Alshehri

April 17th 2018

Signature: